
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

Social Care, 
Housing and 
Public Health 
Policy Overview 
Committee
Date: WEDNESDAY 28 

NOVEMBER 2018

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend.

Councillors on the Committee

Jane Palmer (Chairman)
Duncan Flynn (Vice-Chairman)
Judith Cooper
Alan Deville
Ian Edwards
Tony Eginton
Janet Gardner
Becky Haggar
Paula Rodrigues

Published: Tuesday 20 November 2018 

This agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone 
camera and scan the code below:

Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
mailto:ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk


Useful information for 
residents and visitors

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room. 

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms. 

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations.



Terms of Reference

The Following Terms of Reference are common to all Policy Overview Committees 
(referred to as “The overview role”):

1. To conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service which have either 
been referred by Cabinet, relate to the Cabinet Forward Plan, or have been 
chosen by the Committee according to the agreed criteria for selecting such 
reviews;

2. To monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit (including 
the management of finances and risk);

3. To comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for the Council 
services within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and Council;

4. To consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the decision-maker 
on Key Decisions which relate to services within their remit (before they are taken 
by the Cabinet);

5. To review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken by the Cabinet, a Cabinet 
Member, a Council Committee or an officer.

6. To make reports and recommendations to the Council, the Leader, the Cabinet, a 
Policy Overview Committee or any other Council Committee arising from the 
exercise of the preceding terms of reference.

7. In accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, to consider ‘Councillor Calls For Action’ (CCfA) submissions.

To perform the overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters:
1. Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs
2. Oversee the Council’s Corporate Parenting responsibilities
3. Adoption and Fostering
4. Family Services
5. Adult Social Care
6. Older People’s Services 
7. Care and support for people with physical disabilities, mental health problems 

and learning difficulties
8. Asylum Seekers
9. Local Authority Public Health services 
10. Encouraging a fit and healthy lifestyle 
11. Health Control Unit, Heathrow 
12. Encouraging home ownership 
13. Social and supported housing provision for local residents
14. Homelessness and housing needs
15. Home energy conservation 
16. National Welfare and Benefits changes



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence and to report the presence of any substitute 
Members

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 8

4 To confirm that the items of business marked as Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked as Part II will be 
considered in Private

5 Committee Review - Witness Session 3 Universal Credit And Other 
Welfare Benefit Changes

9 - 44

6 Housing Assessments To Follow 

7 Better Care Fund Plan - update To Follow 

8 Cabinet Forward Plan 45 - 48

9 Work Programme 49 - 52



Minutes

SOCIAL CARE, HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

17 October 2018

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

Committee Members Present: 
Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Duncan Flynn (Vice-Chairman), Judith Cooper, 
Alan Deville, Tony Eginton, Janet Gardner, Paula Rodrigues, Heena Makwana (in 
place of Becky Haggar) and Simon Arnold (in place of Ian Edwards)

LBH Officers Present: 
Mark Billings – Housing Manager, Debby Weller – Policy and Strategy Manager 
(Housing), Anisha Teji – Democratic Services Officer, Dan Kennedy - Deputy Director, 
Housing, Environment, Education, Health & Wellbeing, Sandra Taylor – Assistant 
Director, Provider and Commissioned Care, Kate Kelly – Talbot – Assistant Director, 
Adult Social Care, Ian Anderson – Business Manager, Complaints and Enquiries, 
Kuldip Padan – Team Leader Risk Management, Gulshan Sangha – Welfare Reform 
and Tenancy Support Manager and Kevin Byrne - Head of Health Integration and 
Voluntary Sector Partnerships

Others Present: 
Ellen Salkeld – Income Manager at Catalyst, Stuart Coleman – Head of Housing 
Management at The Barnet Group, Kim Cox – Borough Director CNWL, Dr Mellisha 
Padayatchi, Clinical Director - CNWL, Jane Hainstock – Hillingdon CCG and John 
Beckles – Hillingdon CCG 

33.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF ANY 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence received from Councillor Becky Haggar, with Councillor Heena 
Makwana substituting and Councillor Ian Edwards, with Councillor Simon Arnold 
substituting. 

34.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Jane Palmer declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 8: Telecare 
Line Update as she was previously employed by them. She remained for the 
discussion of the item. 

35.    TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes from the meeting on 26 September 2018 be 
approved, subject to the minor typographical errors. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



36.    TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED AS PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED AS PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4)

It was confirmed that there were no Part II items and that all business would therefore 
be conducted in public. 

37.    MAJOR REVIEW WITNESS SESSION 2  (Agenda Item 5)

Members heard evidence from two witnesses in relation to the Committee’s review on 
universal credit.

Ellen Salkeld – Income Manager at Catalyst 

Ms Salkeld provided the Committee with an overview of housing support, how prepared 
Catalyst were for universal credit and their experience of universal credit so far. In 
summary, she explained that universal credit was a long running process in terms of 
implementing full migration to the service. Although the sector was taking steps to 
prepare for migration, the impact on customers was enormous and could cause 
services to be overstretched. Universal credit affected mass groups of customers at 
once, but there had been a delay in the amount of time taken to roll out the service. 

For every claim with universal credit, support still needed to be provided with other 
types of benefits such as council tax. 

In Ms Salkeld’s opinion, the initial six months of transferring to universal credit were 
difficult for customers for a variety of reasons. However, after six months customers 
tended to adjust well and there were many advantages and disadvantages of the 
service. There were issues with roll out and some people required a large amount of 
support in making applications for universal credit claims. At Catalyst, 10 percent of 
customers were on universal credit and generally arrears were low. It was not all doom 
and gloom as the government had taken steps to mitigate the risks associated with the 
transition process. Ultimately, even with the changes in universal credit, the impact on 
each household was still the same. 

Stuart Coleman – Head of Housing Management at The Barnet Group 

Mr Coleman provided the Committee with a background, identified key risks and 
potential recommendations on the roll out of universal credit. 

The Barnet Group was a small housing provider with around 10,000 units around 
Barnet. At the Barnet Group, universal credit went live in May 2018. It was due to go 
live initially in October 2017, then February 2018 and then May 2018 but there were 
delays. The main reason for the delay was to allow more time for The Barnet Group to 
prepare. Mr Coleman also prepared a presentation and handouts were made available 
to Members at the meeting. 

In summary, a project was undertaken to look into the best way to roll out universal 
credit. There were challenges identified with the roll out of universal credit and a large 
amount of research was undertaken. A relationship with the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) was developed and bench marking data was collated in order to 
create a model. From the research collated a five year plan was created, findings were 
presented to Barnet Council and actions were put into place. A number of partnership 
meetings were undertaken both at a regional and operation level and communication 
with tenants was significant during this period. 

Page 2



Mr Coleman explained that communication should range from the basics including how 
to make a claim and raising awareness of the service and information on how to make 
a claim. At Barnet advertising on promoting awareness on universal credit was 
undertaken for a year. 

Mr Coleman suggested a number of recommendations that could be useful and assist 
with the smooth transition of moving residents to universal credit. Some of the 
suggestions included; creating a universal credit coordinator post, ensuring close 
partnership working with job centres and housing benefit teams, processes in place to 
ensuring early identification and intervention, and implementing coding to report on 
arrears accrued before and after a customer goes onto universal credit. 

Mr Coleman informed the Committee that it was identified after five months into the roll 
out of universal credit that the wards with the high poverty indexes were most affected 
by the changes. There were however no strong correlations in terms of age/gender 
identified and the vast majority of claimants had been single people. 

The main impact on claimants included; difficulties in accessing and managing their 
universal credit journals due to a lack of IT skills, changes in the behaviour to be able 
to budget monthly rather than fortnightly and high risks around the use of advanced 
payments. The risks included over collection, increased arrears and bad debts.  Mr 
Coleman emphasised that it was important to ensure that there was a strong working 
relationship with DWP and Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) and early intervention was 
key. 

Committee discussion 

All the points raised were noted by Members and Members were grateful for the 
witnesses’ attendance. 

It was confirmed that a universal credit coordinator at The Barnet Group had been in 
place for approximately 1.5 months prior to the roll out of the full service of universal 
credit. In addition, the landlord portal had been significant as the universal credit 
coordinator was able to use the portal to confirm rental levels and ensure that the DWP 
had accurate up to date information. The Barnet Group had three named 
officers/managers at the DWP who they regularly corresponded with.

Members questioned how vulnerable tenants were engaged in the process, especially 
people with health concerns. It was accepted that this was an important issue and in 
these circumstances a change of the method in the type of engagement needed to be 
considered. For example, if a claimant was not responding to letters, then texts ought 
to be considered, if there was no response to texts, then visits in person ought to be 
considered. The engagement types needed to be mixed up and tailored to meet the 
claimant and conversations needed to be normalised to ensure that the claimant had 
autonomy. Prioritising and monitoring cases closely and having personal budget 
support sessions were helpful in supporting vulnerable tenants. 

In response to a question on how the process could be streamlined and what lessons 
could be learnt from the relationship with the DWP, witnesses explained that the 
introduction of welfare reform officers could be useful. There needed to be a cohesive 
relationship with named officers between the local authority and DWP and consistency 
was key. Although the CAB was taking on a considerable amount of additional work in 
supporting claimants, there were funding arrangements in place. Funding and sharing 
knowledge and priorities were both key factors for the CAB to support universal credit 

Page 3



claimants. 

In response to how individuals were identified as vulnerable. It was emphasised that 
early intervention was key and it was important to recognise individuals as people 
rather than numbers. It was important to look at a claim on a case by case basis and 
not to assume why a claimant had fallen into debt. Services could not be applied in a 
holistic way. It was important to find a middle ground and consider having a risk 
indicator. 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the witness be thanked for their valuable evidence and attendance. 
2. That the Committee noted the evidence heard and put before it. 

38.    QUALITY AND CAPACITY OF THE COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN 
HILLINGDON  (Agenda Item 6)

Members had regard to the report Quality and Capacity of Mental Health Services 
presented by Kate Kelly Talbot, Assistant Director Adult Social Care, Kim Cox, 
Borough Director and Dr Mellisha Padayatchi, Clinical Director from Central and North 
West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL). 

The report provided an update on the Quality and Capacity of adult community mental 
health services in Hillingdon. The report focused on the Community Mental Health 
Teams (CMHT), where integrated services are delivered by CNWL and the London 
Borough of Hillingdon. 

Members commented that it was a comprehensive report. 

In summary, it was reported that issues were broken down by boroughs in relation to 
“must do recommendations”. Four out of five “must do recommendations” were 
reported as compliant with the exception of one: access to psychological therapies 
limited and long waits. The noncompliance within secondary care psychology provision 
was being addressed and was not solely a Hillingdon issue. 

During discussion, it was noted that in relation to complaints, in Q2 of 2018/19 the 
Hillingdon Mental Health Services received nine complaints. The results showed that 
there was a common theme regarding communication, staff attitude or care delivery.  It 
was noted that not all complaints were upheld. Members considered that 
communication was key in handling complaints. Members took the view that 
communication and staff attitudes were all linked and a significant factor in delivering a 
high standard of care. 

Members questioned whether the 100 referrals a month on average were from specific 
areas around the Borough. It was confirmed that the referrals were spread around the 
Borough and problems differed. In GP sub groups there had been developments in 
mental health, however some GP services only had one person in the practice looking 
after users which could be problematic. However, it was emphasised that a single point 
of access was available 24 hours a day for users and there was now no longer a need 
to access services via a GP referral. 

Following the evidence given on ensuring that vulnerable groups were properly 
engaged when making applications for universal credit claims, it was reported that Ms 
Cox would seek to work closely with Council officers to support users making claims for 
universal credit. This could even include steps such as signposting users in the right 

Page 4



direction and raising awareness of universal credit.  

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report on Quality ad Capacity of 
Mental Health Services. 

39.    CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES UPDATE  (Agenda Item 
7)

Members had regard to the report Children and Young People Mental Health and 
Emotional Wellbeing Update. The report was presented by Jane Hainstock, Hillingdon 
CCG, John Beckles – Hillingdon CCG and Kevin Byrne Head of Health Integration and 
Voluntary Sector Partnerships. 

The report was provided an update on key achievements in implementing the 
Hillingdon Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing (CYP 
MH and EW) Local Transformation Plan (CYPMH LTP), which is being supported 
through the development of the Hillingdon THRIVE network. It was highlighted that 
there had been progress in engaging schools and Uxbridge College. The positive 
progress was good, however it was not underestimated that there was a long way to 
go. 

Special services had been developed such as KOOTH and community eating disorder 
clinics. There have been partnership approaches in the Borough and an initiative to 
develop peer support programmes for children and young people with autism.
 
Areas to focus on as part of future planning included; further reducing waiting times, 
ensuring effective outcomes from interventions, enhancing early intervention and 
support on core CYP MH (CAMHS) services, embedding ASD pathways, delivering a 
single point of access for CYP MH and EW services, developing a local offer to schools 
in more deprived areas and supporting an extra 10-15 schools through the wellbeing 
and mental health network by the end of the summer term 2019. A risk admission 
register was also being developed to support service users. Overall, there had been 
positive feedback from parents in relation to the THRIVE network

During Member questions, it was confirmed that the Young Minds Practitioner training 
event for schools was opened up to schools with the idea that a head teacher, senior 
staff and governors would attend so that they were committed to the programme. 
Maintained and academy schools both engaged with the process. 

RESOLVED: 

That the Committee noted the progress made:
 
1. On the implementation of the Hillingdon Children and Young People’s 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Local Transformation Plan  (CYP 
MHLTP) to date in 2018/19.  

2. In developing the local offer available for CYP and families in ‘Getting 
Advice’ and ‘Getting Help’ (building resilience and early intervention and 
prevention), particularly the establishment of the new Wellbeing and 
Mental Health project in schools which is developing a model of best 
practice and a compendium of resources to support all schools in the 
Borough.

3. The sustained improvement in access for CYP in ‘Getting More Help’ and 
‘Getting Risk Support’ shown in the performance data from CCG and NHS 
commissioned services  

Page 5



40.    TELECARE LINE UPDATE  (Agenda Item 8)

Sandra Taylor, Assistant Director Provider and Commissioned Care introduced the 
report on Telecare and provided an oral summary of the key highlights. 

The purpose of the report was to provide an update on the service and performance 
levels of the TeleCareLine and Out of Hours Service since the transfer to an external 
contractor (Anchor Trust) in December 2017. It was reported that the number of users 
had increased by an average of 69 a month and the age limit for use of the free service 
had now been lowered. In total, there were now approximately 5302 users in the 
Borough and it was a valued service. 

The type of calls received related to a variety of matters including people feeling unwell 
and isolation. Ms Taylor informed the Committee of an incident where there was a 
break in a property and the intruder triggered the bogus alarm. The bogus alarm then 
notified the telecare system which prompted the intruder to leave. Telecare workers 
arranged for the police to check up on the property and the home owner was unaware 
of what had occurred. 

Members commented that it was a good report and a great service. Members were 
proud of the service and were pleased to see it being developed to encompass more 
domestic violence related matters. Members were impressed by the work of the service 
including the intruder incident and were pleased that the home owner did not need to 
experience the stress and anxiety of the situation.  

Members queried why calls were not being answered within 60 seconds. It was 
confirmed that Anchor diverted people to the right area therefore there was not a long 
waiting time. Complaint levels were low and if the organisation was unhappy with the 
call, they could request a transcript and offer any necessary training. 

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the update report on TeleCareLine.

41.    THE ANNUAL COMPLAINTS AND SERVICE UPDATE REPORT  (Agenda Item 9)

Ian Anderson, Business Manager, Complaints and Enquiries introduced the report on 
Annual Complaints Report for Housing and Social Care Services for 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018 and provided an oral summary of the key highlights.

In summary, it was highlighted that the number of informal complaints received had 
reduced. 
* Housing Service - 47 fewer informal complaints received from 455 in 2016/17 to 408 
in 2017/18.
* Children Services - 43 fewer informal complaints recorded when comparing the same 
period for 2016/17 of 103 with 2017/18 of 60.
Adult Social Care - 41 fewer informal complaints recorded when comparing the 
2016/17 figure of 105 with the 2017/18 figure of 64.
The number of formal complaints had risen:

* Housing Service - 45 more Stage 1 complaints were registered when comparing the 
2017/18 figure of 170 with the same period in 2016/17 of 125.
* Children Services - 20 more Stage 1 complaints were recorded when comparing the 
figure of 2016/17 of 33 with the 2017/18 figure of 53.
*Adult Social Care - 19 more Stage 1 complaints were recorded when comparing the 
2016/17 figure of 35 with the 2017/18 of 54.

Page 6



The Local Government Ombudsman concluded the following investigations during 
2017/18.
* 20 Housing Service complaints were concluded, 1 was upheld, 2 partially upheld, 7 
not upheld and in the other 10 the Ombudsman decided not to investigate.
* 7 Children Services complaints were concluded - 2 were upheld, 1 not upheld and 
they decided not to investigate in the 4 other enquiries received.
* 11 Adult Social Care complaints were concluded - 2 were upheld, 3 partially upheld, 2 
not upheld and 4 were not investigated.

8,502 Member enquiries were recorded for 2017/18. This is 683 (7%) less than 
2016/17 figure of 9,185. The service areas with the highest number of MEs is Waste 
(3,340), Anti-Social Behaviour (1,273) and Planning (1,227) Services.

Further to Member questions, it was reported that Hillingdon was doing well in 
comparison to neighbouring boroughs. In particular, Mr Anderson Highlighted Stages 2 
and 3 of the Children's complaint procedure where the Council is required to 
commission independent investigators to undertake investigations. Each investigation 
at Stage 2 costs on average between £4k and £6k. Mr Anderson explained that from 
his experience people are looking for the Council to put right what has gone wrong and 
in many cases the outcome of a complaint is an apology or acknowledgement to know 
how the issue would be resolved. Compensation is offered in some cases where a 
complainant has suffered a financial loss as a result of an error by the Council.  

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the contents of the annual complaint 
report.

42.    FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED: That the forward plan be noted. 

43.    WORK PROGRAMME  (Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED: That the work programme be noted. 

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.37 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655.  Circulation of these minutes 
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

COMMITTEE REVIEW – WITNESS SESSION 3
UNIVERSAL CREDIT AND OTHER WELFARE BENEFIT CHANGES 

Committee name Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview 
Committee 

Officer reporting Anisha Teji, Democratic Services Officer

Papers with report Universal Credit: The Council’s approach in its capacity as 
Landlord

Ward All

HEADLINES

As part of the Committee’s review into Universal Credit and other welfare benefit changes 
and how the Council can support residents through the transition to, and future successful 
management of, their Universal Credit (UC) claims, the following witnesses have been invited 
to present supporting information to the Committee:

 Mr Rod Smith - Tenancy Management Team - Service Manager
 Mr Mark Billings  - Homelessness - Housing Manager

This will be the third witness session, focusing on a key strand to this topic, in how the Council 
approaches Universal Credit changes in its capacity as Landlord. A background report is 
provided for Members’ information.

Further information may follow, after this agenda is published, due to a Landlords Forum 
being held on 20 November 2018, along with other workshops where officers will be able to 
provide more updated information to Members on matters pertinent to the review.

Additionally, Members should note that a site visit to the Job Centre Plus in Uxbridge has 
been arranged for the Committee for the 5 December 2018 and further details will follow.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee notes and 
comments on the information presented as part of the witness session. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The agreed Terms of Reference for the review are set out below:

 Terms of Reference

1. To understand the impact that the introduction of the full UC service has had in areas 
where it has been rolled out. To include the cumulative impact of the introduction of 
UC and other welfare benefit changes.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

2. To understand the impact that UC, alongside other welfare benefit changes, is having 
and is expected to have on local residents in Hillingdon and on the income and costs 
of the Council, housing associations and other local organisations.

3. To examine how the Council services, housing associations and voluntary groups are 
supporting residents to transition to UC and manage their claims.

4. To make practical, prudent recommendations to Cabinet (and other bodies if 
applicable) from the Committee’s findings to support residents transitioning to UC and 
to manage their claims.

Witness session 1

At the meeting on the 26 September 2018, the Committee heard from Debby Weller, Policy 
and Strategy Manager (Housing) and had regard to her information report entitled ‘Universal 
Credit: Understanding universal credit and the claimant journey’.

The Committee also heard from Inderpal Mudhar, a representative from the Department of 
Work and Pensions. 

Witness session 2  

The Committee heard from Ellen Salkeld, Income Manager at Catalyst and Stuart Coleman 
– Head of Housing Management at The Barnet Group.

Implications on related Council policies

While much of this topic is set nationally set, for any changes locally, the role of the Policy 
Overview Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and improvements 
to the Cabinet who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction.

How this report benefits Hillingdon residents

Policy Overview Committees directly engage residents and external partners in the work they 
do.

Financial Implications

These are primarily for residents claiming UC, as set out in the background papers 

Legal Implications

The primary legislation relating to Universal Credit is the Welfare Reform Act 2012, with 
further regulations following thereafter.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Scoping Report
Previous Committee papers on the review published on the Council’s website.

Page 10



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

UNIVERSAL CREDIT - THE COUNCIL'S APPROACH IN ITS CAPACITY AS 
LANDLORD

Officer reporting: 
Rod Smith, Service Manager - Tenancy Services

Appendices included:

Appendix 1 - Universal Credit Risk Assessment Form
Appendix 2 - 'Universal Offer'
Appendix 3 - Tailored Offer
Appendix 4 - UC performance & Activity measures
Appendix 5 – Workflow summary
Appendix 6 – Universal Credit Migration Officer Resource
Appendix 7 – Landlord Verification Process
Appendix 8 – Managed Payment Process
Appendix 9 – Universal Credit Flyer

BACKGROUND

Universal Credit presents two headline risks to the Council in its capacity as a local authority 
landlord: higher levels of rent arrears and in turn the potential for higher numbers of evictions. 
Both risks have potentially significant repercussions. Rental income funds services which are 
directly provided to Council tenants such as; repairs and maintenance, tenancy management 
and responding to anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse incident reports.
 
Aside from impact upon individual households, tenancy failure resulting in eviction is 
expensive. Continuing to support vulnerable households to prevent homelessness will reduce 
expenditure on temporary accommodation for both general funded homeless clients as well 
as those who fail the homelessness test whose temporary accommodation costs are funded 
by children's social care (section 17 funded when there are children in the household).
 
In summary terms, Universal Credit is one of a number of risk factors which must be 
effectively managed by the Council to maximise its income stream and the potential for long 
term tenancy sustainment.

The Strategy

Since the start of 2016, Tenancy Services have been preparing for the roll-out of UC in 
Hillingdon. This work has essentially fallen into two distinct phases; preparation and delivery. 
The third phase to complete the loop will be evaluation. The preparatory phase has not been 
without its challenges which have included:
 

● The plethora of information within the sector which has been brought forward by a 
variety of interest groups and landlords who were rolled out some considerable time 

Page 11



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

ago, including the pilot authorities
● Changes to the roll-out time table
● Keeping pace with the [ever changing] 'rules' regarding UC
● The need to learn from others [who have already moved to full service] who have a 

stock profile and tenant profile which is similar to Hillingdon
● Keeping staff and tenants well informed in a timely and manageable way

 
Central to the strategy across all phases has been a 'whole organisation' approach which 
ensures that best possible use is made of available resources to meet business objectives. 
The three cornerstones of the approach are set out below in figure 1 which seeks to ensure 
that rent is paid and tenancies are sustained. These three cornerstones must be seen as 
inextricably linked in terms of securing regular rent payments and long term tenancy 
sustainment. No element of the plan can be delivered in isolation and is dependent, to a 
greater or lesser extent, on one or more of the other core elements.
 
Figure 1 - The three cornerstones of the Tenancy Services mitigation strategy

 
The remainder of this report will inform Members of various key aspects of preparation work 
which are being delivered under each of the cornerstones to mitigate the headline risks and 
place the Council in the best possible position to secure its rental income and achieve long 
term tenancy sustainment.
 

Page 12



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

PART A – PREPARATION
Support

Early on in the preparation, stage managers from across Risk Management and Housing 
Support stepped up their engagement with other landlords to identify good practice and 
learning opportunities. From the outset managers have not simply 'cherry-picked' but have 
reviewed the context of why certain actions have been taken, their impact and the suitability 
of their use within our own operating environment.
 
Of particular use has been our shadowing of Oxford City Council who have a similar stock 
size to Hillingdon and moved to live service during October 2017, twelve months ahead of 
Hillingdon. Managers made a number of visits to Oxford and established an effective network 
of key contacts. The most important learning points from our engagement with Oxford [and 
other landlords] have been the need to:
 

● Clearly identify tenants who are not just vulnerable but 'vulnerable and at risk' in the 
context of UC roll-out

● Develop an 'offer' and a separate 'tailored offer' for tenants who are identified as 
'vulnerable and at risk' in the context of UC

● Build operational practices and workflow management with these two assessed 
categories in mind

● Provide timely, accurate and simple information to both tenants and staff to secure the 
necessary 'buy-in' and engagement
 

One of the emerging themes from other landlords was that they had brought forward a 
dedicate staff resource which would be working closely with tenants to support them with their 
UC claim, the management of their claim and the management of their personal budgets.
 
As part of a wider programme of change to help position the Council to respond effectively to 
the challenges presented by the roll-out of UC, and to increase management capacity in the 
area, the former Tenancy Support Team was transformed into a new Welfare Reform & 
Tenancy Support Team. Two new Team Leader roles were created with high levels of 
expertise for the management of complex cases, creating a more flexible and resilient 
structure which could accommodate fluctuations in workload. Stronger management 
oversight of the casework will ensure front line officers are supported to deliver effective 
interventions as quickly as possible. The creation of a new Team Manager post has enabled 
the service to be more pro-active and to work in partnership with a wider range of services, 
including DWP.
 
One of the first tasks for the new Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Team was to implement 
a new approach to tenancy 'sign-up'. Managers had previously attended workshops with the 
Housing Quality Network [HQN] which were designed to take a fresh look at pre-tenancy work 
in the context of preparing households for UC. In summary, HQN demonstrated the real 

Page 13



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

potential for supporting tenants to be 'UC ready' much further 'upstream'.
 
Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Workers now attend 100% of all new tenant 'sign-ups'. 
Integral to this role is taking rent payments in advance [in line with tenancy obligations] to 
support a payment culture at the very start of the tenancy. The impact of this structured 
approach to tenancy induction includes:
 
 Promotion of key messages associated with tenancy obligations including rent payment
 Encourage over-payment of rent to build financial resilience
 Ensuring the tenant is 'UC ready' and is fully aware of claimant obligations
 Completion of a needs assessment to ensure that tailored support is provided at the 

earliest opportunity and that tenants are 'plugged-in' to appropriate services
 Completion of an income / expenditure exercise and ensuring tenants have adequate 

money management skills
 Direct and early referral into specialist [CAB] money management and digital access 

support
 Early identification of vulnerabilities which supports the ability to request 'alternative 

payments arrangements' direct from the DWP to the Council
 Promotion of Hillingdon Credit Union's 'jam jar accounts' to facilitate bill payment and 

effective use of Universal Credit payments to support a 'rent first' approach to financial 
obligations

 Facilitating low cost / responsible borrowing via Hillingdon Credit Union for essential 
purchases and to reschedule existing debts

 Maximising the potential for rent payments via direct debit
 Enabling 'payment arrangements' to be agreed and set up at the earliest opportunity
 
The Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Team has now positioned itself at the forefront of 
the Tenancy Services sustainment role with a clear focus to prevent homelessness and 
support those tenants who are at greatest risk of tenancy failure due to UC. The team has a 
strong and proactive model of intervention, working in partnership with a wide range of 
services to best meet the needs of vulnerable households.
 
Tenancy Services now have two core offers in place: a 'universal offer' available to all tenants 
who are claiming or migrating to UC and a 'tailored offer' which is designed to support 
vulnerable tenants who are at risk in the context of full digital roll-out.
 
The 'Universal Officer' can be delivered by any 'customer facing' member of staff and is 
designed to facilitate a structured conversation to establish what the resident must do to 
prepare and be 'UC ready'. For those residents able to follow simple instructions, advice, 
guidance and sign-posting this offer is intended to help those who are able to help 
themselves. The 'tailored offer' is only delivered by members of the Welfare Reform & 
Tenancy Support Team. This resource will be engaging with and supporting those tenants 
who are not just vulnerable due to a range of underlying issues but are also 'at risk' in the 
context of UC. A risk assessment tool has been developed by the service to help identify the 

Page 14



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

most appropriate offer and service pathway. Staff have been trained in the use of this tool
 
Proactive referrals are coming into the Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Team in relation 
to the tailored offer via the following routes:
 
 Assessment of need at the new tenant sign-up process
 As part of the landlord verification process [when the tenant first applies for UC]
 As a result of on-going risk assessments undertaken by staff who are continuing to 

engage with tenants

The Risk Assessment form used to identify tenants who may be 'vulnerable and at risk' in the 
context of UC is attached as Appendix 1. The 'Universal Offer' in use by staff across Tenancy 
Services is attached as Appendix 2. There is no template for the 'tailored offer'. By definition, 
the work undertaken by the Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Officers is based on an 
individual assessment of need which is addressed via a person centred support plan that will 
vary from tenant to tenant. However, Appendix 3 does give an indication of the likely areas 
of support and intervention.
 
ICT & Processes

The introduction of Universal Credit means that the rent collection business model that 
landlords have operated for the past 30 years will ultimately become obsolete. The model 
used was based upon the assumption that rent collection is essentially an administrative 
exercise built around housing benefit procedure where the tenant is effectively absolved of 
responsibility for the rent once they have made a claim. The result was that the tenant 
became a passive third party and the bulk of rent collection was conducted via the working 
relationship established between the landlord and the housing benefit department. Effective 
rent collection was substantially about registering a claim and ensuring all the procedures 
and documentation required to determine the claim have been complied with. The majority of 
the support a tenant might need to pay their rent was managed by the administration of their 
claim and there was little need for any real customer insight. Risk to income was collective 
because it could largely be controlled and managed through effective administrative 
procedures.
 
Experience from Universal Credit pilot projects and live areas shows that landlords need to 
become much more consumer focused and commercial in their approach to rent collection. 
This is not simply about taking a tougher and less tolerant approach to arrears but about 
being more sophisticated and intelligent with data and being able to respond with new ways 
of working and new ideas for services for a range of tenant needs. Moving forward, efficient 
rent collection will depend much more on the effective prediction of individual risk.
 
During autumn 2017, the Council procured and formally engaged Mobysoft RentSense. 
Mobysoft has developed a unique rent arrears decision engine (RentSense) which uses 
complex algorithms to analyse historical data on a tenant’s rent account to assess their true 

Page 15



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

arrears situation and prioritise the case for the staff member. This approach enables rent 
arrears recovery staff in the Risk Management Teams to accurately identify which cases need 
further attention, giving them the knowledge needed to focus resources as efficiently as 
possible. This managed service has the potential to make a significant contribution to our rent 
arrears recovery process by reducing waste, increasing capacity and increasing collection 
rates.
 
Commonly rent arrears recovery staff have hundreds of accounts which appear to be in 
arrears. Tenant’s payment profiles vary greatly for a variety of reasons including; wage / 
salary payment dates, benefit payment dates or simply because they are erratic payers. 
Every recommended action raised by a typical housing management system [and this 
includes Northgate using by the Risk Management Teams] has to be double checked before 
that recommended action is taken [or not] in line with an escalation policy. Time and resource 
is therefore used [and wasted] chasing up arrears which are not a priority, whilst potentially 
genuine problems are not being prioritised.
 
Mobysoft undertook a ‘free of charge’ diagnostic review of the work undertaken by the two 
Risk Management Teams in Tenancy Services. Their high level outcome is set out below:
 

Potential Impact

Rent Roll 17/18 - £62m

HB Income - £34m

Paid direct income - £28m

Risk Management Officers FTE across intervention and enforcement - 12 FTE

Averaged managed income per Risk Management Officer [RMO] - £2.33m

Estimated HB moving to Universal Credit - £26m

New managed direct income per RMO - £4.5m

Potential workload increase - 90%+

Extra FTE RMOs required for Universal Credit - 11 FTEs

Full digital roll-out - October 2018

Page 16



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Situation

Universal Credit presents a revenue risk

50-60% RMO workload does not require contact (unnecessary monitoring)

Morale impacted by unnecessary monitoring and increased UC workload

Cases ‘missing’ from reports - reliance on manual RMO monitoring

At least 2.96 FTE capacity gains by ⬇ waste / unnecessary workload

Unresolved challenges by will mean 5+ FTEs time wasted

Table 1 - Case load analysed

 
Table 1 demonstrates that from the total system caseload analysed by RentSense, predictive 
intelligence would determine that half of all cases would not require contact / action. The 
remaining caseload is determined as being ‘priority 1’ or ‘priority 2’.
 
The high level objective of using RentSense is to remove unnecessary workload to free up 
additional capacity to ensure that revenue collection is maximised and the challenges of 
universal credit are mitigated. The option to ‘do nothing’ means valuable resource continues 
to be wasted reviewing cases unnecessarily. This presenting situation would be against the 
backdrop of a significant upturn in workflow linked to Universal Credit roll-out.

Page 17



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

 
The Risk Management Teams have undertaken a transformational step change in the way 
they work. Traditionally this staff group have worked on a geographic patch basis associated 
with a staff member being responsible for the management of all arrears for a defined number 
of properties. Although this approach has its advantages, it does result in differences in 
workload between patches. No two patches are the same and have very different debt 
profiles. It has been recognised that this may not be the most efficient way of working, 
particularly within a UC operating environment.
 
The new way of working moves away from this traditional approach and adopts a way of 
working linked to six defined ‘master status levels’ or bandings of arrears work. The 
bandings are reflected in figure 2 below. In summary, there is an inverse relationship 
between the number of arrears cases within each banding and the level of input 
required to manage those cases. At the bottom of the triangle are ‘initial - pre notice 
actions’. There will be a significant number of cases within this band involving tenants who 
may have made a late payment or missed a payment. The actions here will relate to initial 
reminder type letters. The volumes are high and the debt levels are low. The complexity of 
case work is also low and is more aligned to simple processing. Staff resource to manage 
this banding is relatively small.
 
Conversely at the top of the triangle are those tenants who are facing imminent eviction. The 
number of cases in this band is low at any one point in time, however the debt levels are likely 
to be significant along with time spend. Case work at this level is frequently complex, 
particularly where families with children are involved. The top third of the triangle bands 
present the most challenges in the context of tenancy sustainment.
 
Following initial analysis to determine the actual number of cases and debts within each 
master status level, staff resources have been re-assigned to manage the debt. Over 
time, these staff resources will be reviewed and also rotated to ensure that all Risk 
Management Officers are competent in managing each of the master status levels.
 

Page 18



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Figure 2 - New ways of working - Six ‘Master Status levels’

 
The DWP will not simply accept and process an online application for UC from a tenant. 
Integral to the processing and determination of a claim is ‘landlord verification’. Social 
landlords must verify all requests from the DWP Service Centre in order for their tenant’s 
applications to progress. This new role is now being performed by the Housing Charges 
Team within Tenancy Services. Verification requests also act as an important ‘trigger’ for 
the Council to engage with UC claimants / tenants to offer support at the earliest opportunity.

The verification process covers:
 
✔ Name of all tenants on the tenancy agreement
✔ Property address including postcode
✔ Current rent and frequency
✔ Full breakdown of rent including all service charges
✔ Number of bedrooms in the property
✔ Confirmation as to whether the tenant is in temporary accommodation or not
✔Vulnerability
 
A ‘high level’ process map has been produced [see Appendix 7] which reflects the central 
role of the Housing Charges Team in processing requests for ‘landlord verifications’. The 
detail below this process map is now being documented to reflect the additional transactions 
integral to this role and the added value which can be gained from this point of initial contact. 

Page 19



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

These transactions and ‘added value’ include:
 

● Where a tenant has not been risk assessed by the Risk Management Team, referring 
cases for assessment as an integral part of the verification process

● Risk Assessment will determine at this early stage if the tenant should appropriately 
be referred into the Welfare Reform and Tenancy Support Team [for the 'tailored offer]

● Early engagement and provision of support will maximise the potential for a successful 
claim, secure regular monthly payments and ensure the tenant is fully aware of their 
claimant obligations and knows where to access help to comply with them

● Irregularities documented in the verification can be swiftly identified and referred to 
Tenancy Management for resolution. Typically, this is expected to include issues 
regarding parties which have been recorded as the tenant. Timely interventions at this 
point will support successful claims

 
‘Managed payments’ [also known as ‘alternative payment arrangements’ or APAs] were 
introduced by Government in response to concerns associated with the ability of vulnerable 
tenants to manage their monthly UC payments to ensure that priority outgoings such as 
housing costs are actually paid. The Housing Charges Team will also have a key role to play 
in relation to rent being paid directly to the Council from the tenants UC award. This role falls 
into two distinct work streams:
 

● As part of the verification process, confirming that [vulnerable] tenants meet the 
threshold for Managed Payments. This relies upon our risk assessments being 
undertaken swiftly and comprehensively

● Receiving a potentially large schedule of monthly payments directly from the DWP 
which must be assigned and credited to individual rent accounts

 
Detailed work is concluding to map and document these important work streams. Options are 
also being considered in relation to automating the posting of managed payments directly 
into tenant’s individual rent accounts as an alternative to manual transactions.
 
The Tenancy Management Teams remain responsible for the ‘end to end management’ of 
all tenancy types. As part of the effective delivery of this function, they have both planned and 
ad hoc contact with tenants regarding a wide range of matters. This extends to the viewing 
function which presents real opportunities to prepare residents even before they become a 
tenant.  Each of these contacts presents an opportunity to undertake a UC risk assessment 
and ensure our tenants are ‘UC ready’ via the delivery of our ‘universal offer’. Each contact 
has the potential to ‘add value’ as part of ensuring that UC claims are successful and tenants 
are meeting their tenancy obligations. To ensure the value of each contact is maximised, 
Tenancy Management Officers have embraced a changed mindset which necessitates 
checking the status of the rent account and the tenant’s position on the ‘claimant journey’ 
before any contact takes place.
 
Having a greater role in the successful management of UC claims and the regular payment 

Page 20



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

of rent helps to support the ‘one service approach’ and raises the profile of this particular 
aspect of tenancy compliance within the broader management of the tenancy.

All tenants assessed as ‘vulnerable and at risk’ are now referred into the Welfare Reform 
& Tenancy Support Team for a ‘tailored offer’ of more intensive work and support to enable 
the tenant to successfully claim, manage their UC and meet their tenancy obligations. To 
mirror the challenges presented by the new Universal Credit operating environment, the 
Welfare Reform and Tenancy Support Team have in turn adopted a new model of support.
 
Referrals now come into the team for tenants assessed as ‘vulnerable and at risk’ from:
 
● Housing Charges Team - linked to the new claim verification process
● Risk Management Teams - following the risk assessment of a new claimant or a 

household in receipt of Housing Benefit who will move to UC as a result of a material 
change in circumstances

● Tenancy Management Teams - linked to the rolling risk assessments which are underway 
across the permanent housing stock.

 
In addition to this form of ‘outreach’ work, the Welfare Reform and Tenancy Support Team 
take the lead role in the new tenant sign up process. This ‘in reach’ work stream provides 
an important opportunity to risk assess all new tenants, ensure they are ‘UC ready’ and 
deliver the ‘tailored offer’ at the earliest possible opportunity.

Teams across Tenancy Services have therefore put in place a number of new structures, 
systems and processes linked to mitigating the impact of Universal Credit. Many of these 
mirror the good practice and research which managers have identified and adapted to align 
them to local circumstances. These changes will be subject to review.
 
Awareness and communication

The third cornerstone of the UC roll-out and mitigation plan has been the need to raise 
awareness and effectively communication with a range of stakeholders; the three key groups 
in this context have been our tenants, our staff groups and the DWP. In the context of staff 
groups, managers from Tenancy Services have reached out to other service teams in the 
Council to raise awareness of UC and how to support residents in being 'UC ready'.
 
Creating and developing productive working relationships with a range of partners has helped 
to support the tenancy sustainment objective and the payment of rent. In the context of UC, 
using these relationships to discuss claims and overcome barriers to payment make life 
easier for tenants and staff. From the early pilot roll-outs across the country, landlords have 
highlighted the need to work in partnership with external agencies to help mitigate the risk of 
UC and the most important partnership is that with the DWP.
 
Many organisations highlighted the need to not only build a close relationship but to do this 
on a personal and local level too. This included:
 

Page 21



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

 Building a strong relationship with local managers
 Ensure staff build relationships with their DWP contacts
 Work closely with local job centres [JCPs]
 Participate in digital platforms to ensure you get information quicker
 Note that National Insurance numbers are essential for DWP communication
 Know what you can and can't ask and know the escalation process
 Encourage claimants to work with and engage with their work coach and do what is 

required to comply with the claimant commitment as sanctions are easily imposed
 
With these principles in mind, our managers and staff groups have positively engaged with 
and built effective working arrangements with lead managers in the DWP and our local JCP 
offices. Earlier this year personal contact was also made with staff in our UC service centre 
located in Cornwall. Examples of current engagement are set out below:
 
 An established escalation pathway to the JCP offices which enables teams to raise 

issues directly with the work coach team leaders. Urgent casework can be escalated 
to the JCP customer services manager

 An interim casework spreadsheet has been shared with our UC service centre to 
provide us with details of whether cases are being assessed, suspended or cancelled 
ahead of our telekit conference meetings which commence during the last week of 
November

 The telekit initiative from DWP enables secure 'case conferencing' to take place 
between staff in Risk Management and the DWP to ensure that issues with new claims 
or existing claim management can be swiftly resolved.

 Arrangements have been made for staff from the Risk Management, Housing Charges 
and Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Teams to shadow the Work Coaches to better 
understand their role and opportunities for referral, early intervention and support

 Managers meet regularly with the DWP partnership manager for Hillingdon to resolve 
any emerging operational issues between the services.

 
In line with other local authority landlords the Council has 'trusted partner' status with the 
DWP and access to its 'landlord portal. The landlord portal provides the Council with the 
ability to submit information directly to the UC online system and to view information about 
tenants who have claimed or are in receipt of UC. Trusted partner status also enables 
requests for 'alternative payment arrangements' to be submitted and accepted by the DWP 
without 'challenge' or further assessment.
 
Integral to developing a UC roll-out and mitigation plan was the need for the Council to be 
clear about what it was trying to achieve as a landlord. In turn this helped to shape our 
communication strategy and engagement with tenants. The Council's objectives in this 
context were clear:
 
 Mitigating financial risks
 Supporting tenants
 Creating a direct payment culture and changing customer ethos
 Empowering staff

Page 22



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

 Moving tenants closer to work
 
Developing a better understanding of how UC affects tenants helped to inform the Council 
on how best to raise awareness, communicate and support tenants. The flyer attached as 
appendix 9 was developed and used in response to basic questions being raised by tenants. 
Improved customer insight also helped to target communications and resources. What 
became clear was the need to:
 
 Monitor and clean data so it is easy to identify residents who will be affected
 Prompt tenants to tell the Council if they have been switched across to UC or claim UC 

within a six month period of coming off UC
 Profile and assess tenants based on risk. In this way the Council could match the 

appropriate resource to the appropriate risk level ensuring an efficient approach.
 Front loading engagement and support with new tenants to create the conditions 

necessary for stable and regular rent payment.
 
Early evidence from pilot authorities demonstrated the need to embed a culture of 'rent first' 
with their tenants. Generally, organisations found that many tenants will only engage fully 
when they know they will be affected. A culture shift requires:
 
 A rent first culture with both tenants and staff
 A review of all literature to ensure that material conveys and communicates the rent first 

approach
 Contact with tenants early in the cycle, understand their needs and introduce them to 

other services

A number of simple but practical communications measures have been used over the last 
two years, and in some areas continue to be used with our tenants including:

 The use of self-adhesive strap-lines across the back of envelope seals directing tenants 
to further information and support

 The use of strap-lines across a range of template letters
 Up to date website pages with links to the DWP and other service providers
 Using quarterly rent statements to convey clear and simple information to tenant to use 

in their UC claim
 Maximising the use of text messaging which is both immediate and responsive to remind 

tenants of payments due and missed payments
 
The importance of changing and supporting the internal cultural change could not be 
overstated. Three of the biggest 'musts' have been:
 

 The need to support and re-skill staff. Staff required a lot of support for the change in 
their roles. Whilst this was another intensive resource, it bears fruit as staff gain 
additional skills whilst being much cheaper and quicker than recruiting. Staff 
development remains ongoing

 The need for ongoing consultation with staff. Getting their feedback, understanding 

Page 23



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

their concerns and supporting them to adopt new ways of working helps to embed the 
culture shift

 The need to prepare Boards and Members. Sharing findings and providing updates 
supports the 'one organisation approach'.

As part of adopting a culture of 'rent first' it is important to adopt the culture within the 
organisations performance management framework which includes 121s and the appraisal 
process. In this context, the UC work stream has been firmly embedded in performance and 
development plans across Tenancy Services for the last two years.
 
Supplementing the work undertaken by the Council in the context of its landlord role a cross-
service project group was established to manage the broader risks associated with Universal 
Credit; most notably increased homelessness resulting from potential evictions and a 
reluctance of landlords to house benefit claimants. The project team meet on a six weekly 
basis and report into Housing Board on the same frequency. Standing agenda items include:
 
● Ensuring teams have appropriate staff resources and structures in place
● Updating and providing policy and practice guidance for staff
● Reviewing processes
● Delivering an effective communication plan involving residents and staff groups
● Training
● Support for residents
● Making effective use of customer insight and management information
 
One key area of reporting and review for the cross-service project group has been customer 
access. In August 2018 the Customer Contact Centre introduced a new Housing call category 
[Universal Credit]. Headline calls over the three month period August to October 2018 are set 
out below:
 
August 2018

Call type Calls offered Resolution [%] Ave handle time

Housing needs 5361 84 9.19

Housing rents 1856 91 5.42

Housing repairs 3615 80 7.45

Tenancy & estates 760 86 9.10

Universal Credit 1 0 0

Sum 11593 84 8.09

 

Page 24



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

September 2018

Call type Calls offered Resolution [%] Ave handle time

Housing needs 5596 85 8.56

Housing rents 1928 92 5.36

Housing repairs 3441 81 8.04

Tenancy & estates 886 86 8.37

Universal Credit 26 79 7.42

Sum 11877 85 8.02

 
October 2018

Call type Calls offered Resolution [%] Ave handle time

Housing needs 4118 86 8.49

Housing rents 2173 90 5.48

Housing repairs 4392 78 7.51

Tenancy & estates 900 86 8.40

Universal Credit 2649 90 8.03

Sum 14232 85 7.51

 
The uplift in call volumes during the month of October will relate to the final 'large scale' mail 
out to tenants in advance of the 'go live' date of October 2018. It is extremely positive to note 
that the resolution rate for these calls was in the order of 9 out of 10 resulting in only 1 in 10 
calls being passed through to the 'back off'. Call volume and call handling data will continue 
to be monitored by the cross-service project group.
 

Page 25



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

PART B – DELIVERY
The service has now positioned itself well to ‘stress-test’ the measures it has put in place to 
manage the workflow and the risks presented by UC. These measures have been reported 
to Housing Board on an ongoing quarterly basis since February 2016. The core areas to 
stress test are:
 

● Landlord verifications - the need for a number of ‘back office’ checks to be managed 
through the DWP ‘landlord portal’ for all new UC claims and requests for ‘alternative 
payment arrangements’.

● Role of the UC Migration Officer - the key interface between the Housing Charges 
Team, the Risk Management and Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Teams. This 
resource will risk assess all new claimants for UC and ensure that they are either 
referred into the Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Team for tailored support or 
provided with advice and assistance until UC is successfully in payment and the first 
rent payment is made

● New model of support within Welfare Reform & Tenancy Services - the ability of 
the re-modelled service to manage increased workflow and effectively support tenants 
who are not just vulnerable but ‘at risk’ in the context of UC

● Use of ‘alternative payment arrangements’ - one of a number of ‘tools in the box’ to 
support vulnerable households and mitigate the impact of arrears escalating

● Posting managed payments directly to rent accounts - ensuring that large 
schedules of direct rent payments are posted to the correct rent account in a timely 
fashion

● Extent of tenants who are ‘UC ready’- ongoing preparatory work to ensure that all 
households are ready to migrate over to UC and have the capability and confidence 
to manage their claim and payments in the long term

● Effectiveness and use of the ‘universal offer’- ensuring that this key document 
remains relevant, up to date and effective for all staff groups to use as part of ensuring 
that tenants are given clear, consistent and practical advice in the context of UC

● Impact of changes to new tenant sign-up - maximising the potential of early 
assessment, support and intervention to ensure that all new tenants are effectively 
supported and adopt a ‘rent first’ culture

● Referral pathways to CAB associated with locally delivered personal budgeting 
and digital access - making best use of DWP funded support to enable tenants to 
make and maintain online claims and manage their income responsibly

● Ability of all staff groups to ‘add value’ via personal contact with tenants - 
ensuring staff groups adopt and embrace a changed mind-set in their day to day 
contact with tenants which reflects a full understanding of the claimant journey and 
supports the ‘rent first’ culture

● Capacity within Risk Management and effectiveness of new ways of working - 
testing and monitoring new ways of working to make the best possible use of available 
resources which also supports an evidence base for any changes to resource levels

● Working relationships with UC service centre / escalation of casework and 

Page 26



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

‘troubleshooting’ - networking and the use of ‘key contacts’ and escalation pathways 
must support swift and accurate resolution of casework issues for tenants

● Role of UC performance & activity measures to identify trends and influence 
behaviours - measures adopted must support a culture of learning and drive ongoing 
transformation to meet the risks presented by UC and to support medium term 
modelling

 
UC performance & Activity measure

The number of live claims within the service still remained low at the midpoint in the year - 
see Appendix 4 - UC performance & Activity measures. Of the 78 claims in payment at the 
end of September 2018, 65 tenancies were in arrears with an average arrear of £1,179.00. 
The average uplift in arrears however [given that some tenants were already in arrears at the 
time of claiming UC] was only £210.00. This is less than 2 weeks average rent. The cash 
value of this uplift is however in excess of £16k.
 
Appendix 4 sets out the new suite of performance indicators and activity measures which will 
be reported to Housing Board moving forward as part of monitoring the impact of UC and the 
effectiveness of the mitigation measures in place.
 
For the avoidance of any doubt, Members of the Policy Overview Committee should be clear 
that total arrears will increase in a UC live operating environment. The task for Tenancy 
Services in partnership with other service providers is to continue to work to maximise the 
potential for long term tenancy sustainment, minimise the potential for costs to be transferred 
to other parts of the Council and manage downwards the debt spike in the years following 
roll-out.
 

Page 27



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Appendix 1 - Universal Credit Risk Assessment Form

Universal Credit Risk Assessment

Prior to visiting or making a phone contact, please complete desktop checks e.g. Rent 
account (Northgate), Tenant history (Civica file/notes); e.g. repeat homelessness, history of 
DA and talk to colleagues/agencies who currently or have recently worked with the tenant.
Please complete by ticking Yes  or No :

Name:
Address:
National Insurance no:

Conversation to identify clients who are vulnerable and would be at risk of tenancy 
failure without support in the context of Universal Credit (UC).

 1 - Background [this may be available from the ‘desktop’ checks]

 Previous accommodation was supported or temporary accommodation
 Current risk of eviction due to financial or behavioural issues
 History of tenancy failure / loss of accommodation
 Care leaver
 Refugee or asylum seeker
 History of long term / repeat institutional confinement eg hospital / prison / care
 History of domestic abuse
 Previously a member of the armed forces

 2 - Money Management

 Severe or multiple debt problems
 Subject to a current Possession Order / Attachment of earnings
 History of rent arrears leading to formal action
 Do you manage your finances on a ‘week to week’ basis
 Do you struggle with managing your money / household budget
 No access to banking facilities / facilities which enable automated payments
 Currently subject to 3rd party deductions from benefits
 Experienced at applying for benefits such as HB online
 Rent / Council tax / utility bills paid by DD

3 - Health Issues / personal circumstances

 Struggle with alcohol, drug or other addiction problems 
 Underlying mental health issues
 Family with complex and multiple needs e.g. child in need / in care
 Learning difficulties present
 Long term bereavement issues
 Low or no literacy skills
 English is not the first language in use
 Chronic health condition / physical disability which impacts on day to day activity

Page 28



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

 Low or no ICT skills
 No access to ICT
 Hoarding disorder present
 Not currently in education, employment or training

Additional information: 

Assessment Outcome Guidance:
Once your conversation is concluded, please indicate the outcome of your assessment 
below. 

To select ‘Vulnerable and at Risk’, you will have said Yes to three or more selections in 
each of the categories: 1- background, 2-  money management and 3- health 
issues/personal circs. In summary a total of nine or more selections puts a tenant in the 
‘vulnerable and at risk’ group. They must be flagged on Northgate for support in the 
context of UC. 

Please note that in some cases tenants will not be as forthcoming as we would like them 
to be. If in doubt about their vulnerability or if you think the case is marginal please select 
Yes below. Flags can be changed following engagement during full UC roll-out if 
necessary.

‘Vulnerable and at Risk in the context of UC’


‘Not vulnerable and at Risk in the 
context of UC’     

Officer’s name: Ex no: Date of conversation:

NOTE: - For every tenant who has been risk assessed using this form a ‘Flag’ needs 
to be entered on their Northgate record using the ‘How to Guide’.

For tenants who are ‘vulnerable and at risk’ in the context of UC’ the flag is: 
****************
For tenants who are not vulnerable in the context of UC the flag is: ************(please 
use this code for tenant categories of exceptions who will not be claiming UC).

Page 29



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Appendix 2 - 'Universal Offer'

Universal Credit (UC) - providing a Universal Offer  
A Universal Offer is the very basic support that all staff across teams can offer residents they speak to, this could be within the 
current Pilot area (HA5 & HA6) and outside of the pilot area in preparation for the Oct 18 roll-out. 

Following on from your initial conversation i.e. a resident called or you called them (not necessarily related to benefits); these notes 
can help/guide your conversation with every contact.

Is the tenant you are speaking to UC ready? Find out:
Do you have a bank account? 

Officer info:
 Universal Credit will be  paid monthly 

in arrears including housing costs 
(replacing housing benefit), this will 
only be paid into one bank 
nominated by claimant

 Tenants will be responsible for 
paying their rent directly to the 
council -  encourage them  to set up 
a Direct Debit by calling 01895 
250383 or email: 
housingcharges@hillingdon.gov.uk.

 The current digital online claim does 
not allow Post office card accounts 
to be entered as a bank account.  

If Yes - how do you pay your rent? 
Client response - By Direct debit or rent card - no action required
 If they say housing benefit or the council pays my rent - add-  did you know that 
from Oct 2018, way housing benefit is paid will change- refer to officer info

If No - claimants cannot proceed with the UC claim without entering bank 
details.
provide options  i.e. Credit Union:
 tenants can join Credit Union via online application form: 
https://www.cusecureserver.co.uk/~lbhcudigital/members/frm_memberapp.php
By Phone: 01895 250958 (Mon - Fri 10.00 am - 3.00 pm). 
 And Email: info@hillingdoncu.co.uk

Basic Bank account - many high street banks should offer fee-free basic bank 
accounts:
Bank or Building society Basic Account name

Nationwide Building Society flexbasic 

P
age 30

https://www.cusecureserver.co.uk/~lbhcudigital/members/frm_memberapp.php


Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

TSB cash account 

Barclays basic account

HSBC basic account

Natwest foundation account

Santander basic

Tenants can apply for a basic bank account even if they had previous credit 
problems.

Proof of identity is required - passport or driving licence, if a tenant does not 
have either of these, the bank might accept an alternative such as an original 
letter from the council or DWP. 

Do you have an email address? 
Officer info:

 Claimants need an email address to 
apply for UC. 

 The online claim form for UC does 
not allow a claim to proceed without 
entering a mobile phone number and 
an email address. 

 Journal prompts are made via email

If Yes-  take the email address and add to tenancy file

If No - are you able to set up an email address - if Yes - request tenant to share 
this with us once they set one up.

If No - I need help to set one up - send a google guide to tenant 
and 
recommend IT training provided by uxbridge library - see details below:

P
age 31



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Are you able to fill out forms online/on a 
computer?

Officer info: 
 Digital ability is an important aspect 

for UC applicants.

 Claimants will have an online UC 
account to manage their claim. 

 They will be required to use their 
account to report changes in 
circumstances and receive/send 
messages to their work coach

If Yes - do nothing

If No - are they in the UC Pilot area and claimed or in receipt of UC? -  refer 
tenant to CAB for digital support, the referral route is: 
PBsupport@hillingdon.gov.uk. CAB will make direct contact with the tenant.

If No - out of HA5/6 Pilot area - suggest and support tenant to book or 
encourage tenant to book ICT training with Uxbridge library, they offer taster 
sessions for beginners at 11.00 am and intermediate at 10.00 am every 
Friday morning (booking only). Photo ID and proof of address required. 

Do you have access to a computer?

Officer info:
 Computer access is a requirement 

for UC claimants to claim and 
maintain their claim.

If Yes - do nothing

If No - tenants can access computers - at the civic center housing reception, 
Libraries across the borough.
And 
if they live in Yiewsley/West Drayton area - computer access is available at the 
Com Cafe  Glebe estate - opening hours Wednesdays and Thursdays 9.00 
am - 5.00 pm and Fridays 9.00 am - 2.30 pm. 

Do you currently pay your rent or is your 
rent paid by Housing benefit?

Officer info:
 UC claimants will receive housing 

costs paid to them directly (unlike 

If Yes - tenant pays rent either by Direct Debit or Rent card and they are not in 
the UC Pilot area - encourage them to pay £1.00 extra or more if they can afford 
to. Inform them that this will  prevent them from falling into high arrears in the 
future when UC comes their way (full roll out expected in Oct 18 and registering 
a change of circumstance, residents will move to UC).

If No - HB or the council pays the rent, are they working age, Single? Or a 

P
age 32

mailto:PBsupport@hillingdon.gov.uk


Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

HB payments paid directly to 
landlords/council)
 

 The Housing costs element is paid 
monthly in arrears, paying extra will 
help to cover rent before the claim is 
awarded.

 UC claimants will be responsible for 
paying their own rent and other 
housing costs. They also will be 
required to apply for Council tax 
reduction separately.

Single parent with up to two children? or a Couple with up to two children 
or a Couple without children? UC applies to this group.  The tenant needs to 
know that they will have to apply for UC when there is a change in their 
circumstances. 

NB -UC will not generally apply to tenants in B&B.

Do you generally struggle with budgeting? 

Do you find that the money you get is not 
enough to cover your rent, shopping and 
bills? Officer info:

 In difficult circumstances - help is 
available from Hillingdon Foodbank

Via food vouchers from:
 Citizens Advice Bureau
 Children’s centres
 Health visitors
 Housing Benefit (only provided to HB 

customers) 

If No - tenant is fine with money management - do they know about Credit 
Union and its saving and borrowing opportunities? If no, please provide 
info/details.

If Yes -  in UC Pilot area? - refer tenant to CAB for budgeting support; The 
referral route is: PBsupport@hillingdon.gov.uk. CAB will make direct contact 
with the tenant.

You can also recommend this site: http://obs.moneyadviceservice.org.uk/ , it is 
designed to support UC claimants with budgeting.  Here users can be 
signposted to financial guidance and support relevant to their personal 
circumstances, hints and tips for money management and paying bills for their 
monthly income. Also signposting users to further support i.e. advanced 
payments and free debt advice. 
 
If Yes - not is Pilot area  - any known vulnerabilities? Yes,  refer resident to 
tenant to the Welfare Reform and Tenancy Support for support team. 

P
age 33

mailto:PBsupport@hillingdon.gov.uk
http://obs.moneyadviceservice.org.uk/


Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

No known vulnerabilities, provide helpful information i.e. the Money Advice 
Service gives free money guidance online at   moneyadviceservice.org.uk or 
tenant can contact money advice on free phone  0800 138 7777

Hillingdon Drop In-Navigator P3 is open to all young people who need advice 
and support. You can contact them on 01895 436114 or they can drop-in to the 
Yiewsley Navigator.

P
age 34

http://moneyadviceservice.org.uk/


Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Appendix 3 - Tailored Offer

DWP uses a criteria to identify a risk of financial harm to claimants and their families if they 
receive monthly payments. They have classed tier 1 and tier 2 vulnerability factors as follows:

Tier one  factors:
 Drug, alcohol or other addiction 

problems
 Learning difficulties including 

literacy and numeracy problems.
 Severe or multiple debt problems
 In temporary or supported 

accommodation
 Homelessness
 DV or abuse
 Mental health conditions
 Rent arrears 
 Risk/threat of eviction
 Repossession
 Clients aged 16 or 17 years
 Young person and leaving care
 Families with multiple and complex 

needs. Language skills i.e. reading 
or English isn’t first language

Tier one claimants will likely need an 
Alternative Payment Arrangement (APA) 
depending on their personal 
circumstances.

Tier two factors: 
 No bank account
 Third party deductions from client 

benefits i.e. to pay fuel bill arrears or 
ongoing costs

 Refugee or asylum seeker
 History of rent arrears
 History of homelessness or living in 

supported accommodation
 Disability
 Just left/released from prison or 

hospital discharge
 Recent bereavement
 Been in armed forces
 Not being in education, employment or 

training.

Tier two vulnerabilities means claimants might 
need an APA, however it is not likely they will 
get this as someone with tier one vulnerability 
(this is dependent on personal 
circumstances).

Clients who are vulnerable and at ‘risk’ could present with any of the tiers 1 or 2 vulnerabilities 
and will need a tailored support package.

A tailored support package offer could include all or some of the following:

 Helping UC claimants to address their digital and financial barriers. (I.e. no access to 
internet, inability to complete online application due to mental health and those who 
can’t read or write)

 Applying for a hardship payment when claimants are ‘sanctioned’  (i.e. for not 
satisfying claimant commitment - personal allowance element, doesn’t include 
housing costs or child elements of UC). Depending on what they haven’t done and 
how many times they have failed to meet their responsibility; a sanction can apply 
for anything from 4 months to 3 yrs, (support with application - upto 40% can be 
deducted, repayment is expected).

 Getting help with budgeting for vulnerable clients who need money advice/money 
management and budgeting on a monthly basis, access to banking/ jam jar credit 
union and paying bills on time. 

Page 35



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

 Applying for Council Tax support via the Council.

 Support with UC new claim advance payment in cases where they can’t manage 
financially until their first payment comes in (any monies offered will be recovered 
over a period of time).

 Applying for alternative arrangements (more frequent payments than monthly could 
be considered) for people with a history of addiction, mental health conditions and 
DV. 

 Applying for 2 homes:- in cases where there is fear of violence as long as there is an 
intention to return to the original home (for up to 12 months) and disabled persons 
who can’t move to a new home because property needs adaptation

 
 Help for making and managing online claims including reporting change of circs 

online, sending messages to their work coach and help in understanding 
responsibility for rent payments. (exclusions - water rates and reduction for under 
occupation, 1 bedroom 14% & 2 bedrooms 25%).

 Help to understand their claimant commitment and consequences if these are not 
 met (claimant commitment sets out what they have agreed to do to prepare for and 
look for work or to increase their earning if they are already working), based on their 
personal circumstances and progress is updated on an ongoing basis. 

 Engagement with their work coach 

 Struggling with budgeting and in rent arrears for 2 months or more:
o support with applying for APA on a temporary basis to help claimants 

identified needing support to pay their rent and delivery of APA exit plan.
o Support with updating personal journal 
o Support with applying for more frequent than monthly payments (difficulty 

managing their affairs)
o Support where there is a split of an award between partners. 
o Applying for DHP to cover any shortfall

In addition, linking clients to relevant services if they are not already known and/or encouraging 
their engagement with relevant services i.e. mental health, ARCH, social services, CAB and Free 
debt advice services. Support will be provided for up-to 90 days, once case is closed - in more 
vulnerable cases HSW will continue to track progress.  In less vulnerable cases these will need 
to be monitored and reviewed by RMOs /TMOs. Re-referrals will be expected on and off 
depending on individual needs.

Page 36



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Appendix 4 - UC performance & Activity measures

Risk Management Q 2 
18/19

Target

Total number of tenancies 9,722 N/A

No of tenants in receipt of UC 78 N/A

% of tenants in receipt of UC 0.80 N/A

Total number of tenancies in arrears 3,651 N/A

% of tenants in arrears 37.55 N/A

Number of tenancies in receipt of UC in arrears 65 N/A

% of UC tenants in arrears 83.33 N/A

Total cash value of current tenant arrears £1,632,922 £1,600,000

Average arrears per tenant £447.25 N/A

Cash value of UC current tenant arrears £76,635 N/A

Average arrears per UC tenant £1,179.00 N/A

Increase in cash value of arrears due to tenants 
moving to UC

£16,415.68 ≤No of tenants in receipt of 
UC x £493 

Average uplift in UC current tenant arrears £210 ≤4 weeks average rent
[£493]

% of arrears due to UC 1.01 N/A

Total number of APAs in payment 56 N/A

Welfare Reform & Tenancy Support Q 2 
18/19

Target

Number in support 117 220

Number successfully sustained 229 660

Support terminated / incomplete 3 N/A

Re-referred within 6 months of closure 28 N/A

Worker to client ratio 1:23 1:30

Number of referrals by ‘UC vulnerable & at 12 N/A

Page 37



Classification: Public
Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

risk’ category

Housing Charges Q 2 
 18/19

Target

Number of UC verifications completed 27 N/A

% of UC verifications completed within 5 
days

100% 100%

% of all tenants paying by DD 35.8 40%

Page 38



A
ppendix 5 - W

orkflow
 S

um
m

ary

P
age 39



A
ppendix 6 - U

niversal C
redit M

igration O
fficer R

esource

P
age 40



Appendix 7 - Landlord Verification Process

P
age 41



Appendix 8 - Managed Payment Process

P
age 42



Appendix 9 - Universal Credit flyer

P
age 43



P
age 44



Classification: Public

Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

SOCIAL CARE, HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 

Committee name Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 

Officer reporting Anisha Teji, Chief Executive’s Office

Papers with report Appendix A – Forward Plan 

Ward All

HEADLINES

The Committee is required by its Terms of Reference to consider the Forward Plan and comment 
as appropriate to the decision-maker on key decisions which relate to services within its remit 
(before they are taken by the Cabinet or by the Cabinet Member).

RECOMMENDATION

That the Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee notes and 
comments on items going to Cabinet. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The latest published Forward Plan is attached. 

Implications on related Council policies

A role of the Policy Overview Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction.

How this report benefits Hillingdon residents

Policy Overview Committees directly engage residents and external partners in the work they do.

Financial Implications

None at this stage.

Legal Implications

None at this stage.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

NIL. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision 
by Full 
Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Officer Contact 
for further 
information

Consultation on the 
decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

294 Award of 
contracts: 
supported living 
services for people 
with learning 
disabilities

Cabinet will be asked to agree an extension of the care and support 
contracts for a range of supported living services for people with learning 
disabilities to enable all of the Council's contracts for this type of service 
to be tendered at the same time.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

SC - Kate Kelly-
Talbot / Gary 
Collier

Private (3)

295 Public Health 
Contracts

Cabinet will consider the contract award for NHS Health Checks 
Services across the Borough.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

RS / FD - 
Sharon Daye / 
Emma Rankin / 
Suzie Shardow

Private (3)

284 Free Burglar Alarm 
Contract

Hillingdon residents aged 65 and over can apply to have a burglar alarm 
installed in their home free of charge. This report to the Leader of the 
Council will be to consider the contract for the professional installation of 
these.

All Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot 
MBE

RS/FD - John 
Wheatley / Lisa 
Sharp

Private (3)

272
a

The Council's 
Budget - Medium 
Term Financial 
Forecast 2019/20 - 
2023/24 BUDGET & 
POLICY 
FRAMEWORK

This report will set out the Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF), 
which includes the draft General Fund reserve budget and capital 
programme for 2019/20 for consultation, along with indicative projections 
for the following four years. This will also include the HRA rents for 
consideration.

All 21-Feb-19 Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot 
MBE & Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

FD - Paul 
Whaymand

Public consultation 
through the Policy 
Overview 
Committee process 
and statutory 
consultation with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

Public

273 Assistance to 
Hillingdon's local 
voluntary 
organisations

This report to Cabinet will make recommendations on the level of 
financial support to voluntary organisations for the 2019/20 financial 
year, demonstrating continued commitment to the vital work they do for 
residents in Hillingdon.

All Cllr Douglas 
Mills

RS - Nigel 
Cramb

Corporate Services, 
Commerce & 
Communities POC

Public

SI = Standard Item each month                                                                                                                                Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services    SC = Social Care   CEO = Chief Executive's Office    FD= Finance   

Cabinet meeting - 13 December 2018

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public

Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

SOCIAL CARE, HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 

Committee name Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 

Officer reporting Anisha Teji, Chief Executive’s Office

Papers with report Appendix A – Work Programme

Ward All

HEADLINES

To enable the Committee to track the progress of its work in 2018/2019 and forward plan its work 
for the current municipal year.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee considers the 
report and agrees any amendments. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. The Committee's meetings tend to start at 7pm and the witnesses attending each of the 
meetings are generally representatives from external organisations, some of whom travel from 
outside of the Borough.  The meeting dates for this municipal year are as follows: 

Meetings Room
13 June 2018, 7pm CR 5
30 July 2018, 7pm CR 4
26 September 2018, 7pm CR 4
17 October 2018, 7pm CR 4
28 November 2018, 7pm CR 4
16 January 2019, 7pm  CR 4
7 February 2019, 7pm CR 4
18 March 2019, 7pm  CR 4
11 April 2018, 7pm CR 4 
June 19 meeting, 7pm TBC
July 19 meeting, 7pm TBC
September 19 meeting, 7pm TBC
October 19 meeting, 7pm TBC
November 19 meeting, 7pm TBC
December 19 meeting, 7pm TBC

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



Classification: Public

Social Care, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee – 28 November 2018

Implications on related Council policies

A role of the Policy Overview Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction.

How this report benefits Hillingdon residents

Policy Overview Committees directly engage residents and external partners in the work they do.

Financial Implications

None at this stage.

Legal Implications

None at this stage.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

NIL. 

Page 50



Multi year work programme
Social Care, Housing & Public Health 2018 2019
Meeting Month June July September October November January February March April June July September October

Date 13 30 26 17 28 16 7 18 11 TBC TBC TBC TBC

REVIEW A: Universal Credit and other 
welfare benefit changes 
Topic selection / scoping stage Agree topic Scoping report 

Witness / evidence / consultation stage Witness Session 1 Witness Session 2 Witness Session 3 Witness Session 4

Findings, conclusions and recommendations Findings 

Final review report agreement Final Report 

Target Cabinet reporting CABINET

Post review monitoring TBC

Title of Review B
Topic selection / scoping stage

Witness / evidence / consultation stage

Findings, conclusions and recommendations

Final review report agreement

Target Cabinet reporting

Post review monitoring

Regular business items 
Mid year Budget Update X

Annual complaints & service update report X X

Looked After Children Performance Data X

Annual LCSB (Children's Safeguarding Board report) X X

Annual SAPB (Adults Safeguarding Board report) X X

Quality and Capacity of the Community Mental Health 
Services in Hillingdon 

X

Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services update X X

Cabinet's budget proposals for next financial year X

Cabinet Forward Plan monitoring X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Work Programme X X X X X X X X X X X X X

One-off business items
Introductory report on overview and scrutiny X

Presentation on the Council's corporate parenting role X

Information report on current housing policy X

Child Sexual Exploitation - update report X

Housing assessments X

Better Care Fund Plan X

Update on Telecare Line X

A presentation from the Children in Care Council X

Past review monitoring
Early Intervention Service X

Hospital Discharges X X

Stroke Prevention X

Loneliness and Social Isolation X

Internal use only
Report deadline 4 June 2018 19 July 2018 14 September 2018 8 October 2018 19 November 2018 7 January 2019 29 January 2019 7 March 2019 2 April 2019 TBC TBC TBC TBC

Agenda published 5 June 2018 20 July 2018 17 September 2018 9 October 2018 20 November 2018 8 January 2019 30 Janaury 2019 8 March 2019 3 April 2019 TBC TBC TBC TBC

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Committee Review - Witness Session 3 Universal Credit And Other Welfare Benefit Changes
	Appendices 5-9

	8 Cabinet Forward Plan
	Cabinet Forward Plan
	Decision Forward List


	9 Work Programme
	Combined POC Multi-Year Work Programmes - Social Care, Housing and Public Health (5)


